Historic Preservation Commission
Special Meeting Minutes
Fire Substation 111 E. Nash St.

June 20, 2023
4:00 p.m.
Members Present: Charles Drew, Rick Pukenas, Bonner Herring, Bonnie Bray, and Tal West
Members Absent: Joanne Wesson, Jim McKee, Alexis-Gore Graves, and Josh McGee.
Staff Present: Travis Henley, Director of Development Services

Maureen Meehan, City Planner
Tanya Shannon, Deputy Clerk

Board of Aldermen: Robert Carroll
Liaison:

A. Chairman Charles Drew called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m.

The Invocation was given by Chairman Charles Drew.
C. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Drew.

A Motion was made by Mr. Herring to vote Ms. Bray and Mr. West into voting positions and
seconded by Mr. Pukenas. Unanimous Vote; Motion Carried.

D. Mr. Pukenas Motioned to approve the Agenda and was seconded by Mr. West.
Unanimous vote; Motion carried.

E. A Motion was made to approve the June 7, 2023, Meeting Minutes by Mr. Pukenas and was
seconded by Mr. Herring. Unanimous vote; Motion carried.
F.  Public Comment:

e Ms. Pat Kirkman said that she would like to make a suggestion and a proposal. She would like to
see a Plaque that recognizes The City of Southport as being designated on the National Historic
Registry since 1980. She is proposing that monies that have been appropriated in the budget for
the Historic Commission be used to purchase a plaque and recommended putting it on the back
of the Susie Carson monument at Fort Johnston.

® Planning Board Chairman Sue Hodgin addressed the Board and explained that the Planning
Board will begin review on the Signage and Lighting standards and guidelines in the UDO for
possible updates and revisions. She said that since this will be an extensive review, she would
like the HPC to be involved in the process. She said that the goal for both boards is to protect
and preserve the historic character of Southport. She asked that when the Historic Commission
begins establishing the guidelines for signage and lighting to consider collaborating with the
Planning Board so that these guidelines and standards can be unified.

Mr. West questioned if the signs in Southport were ground mounted. Planner Meehan stated
some parts of the City have ground mounted signs. Mr. West said in his opinion that ground
mounted signs look better. Ms. Hodgin said that this would be something that the Boards could
review to determine the standards for the appropriate zoning district.



Old Business: Review of Design Guidelines

Additions to Historic Buildings

Development Services Director Henley continued with review of Beaufort’s design guidelines.
He went over the guidelines at 7.8.1. Where possible, locate new additions at the side or rear
so that they have a minimal impact on the facade and other primary elevation of the affected
building or adjacent properties. Henley said that “where possible” will be up to the discretion of
the Board.

Director Henley said that guideline 7.8.2 will likely be controversial. He explained that
constructing a new addition cannot be bigger to the existing structure. Mr. West suggested
adding a disclaimer so that you “don’t lose your sense of place”. He explained that if there is a
historical structure that wants to add on and it doesn't fit in with the character then it has lost
it’s since of place.

Mr. West referenced back to the last meeting where he was unable to attend and the aluminum
facade store fronts. He questioned what this discussion was about. Planner Meehan said that
there was discussion on the store front fagcade and it was recommended that shiny aluminum
or other types of colored aluminum should be prohibited.

Decks on Historic Buildings

City Planner Meehan went over the guidelines in Chapter 7 for decks. As stated, decks or patios
should be built so that they do not damage any significant historic architectural features and
can beremoved in the future with minimal damage. Guideline 7.9.5 that stated, ‘decks may not
be constructed on the roof of any historic structure in the historic district’. Planner Meehan
qguestioned if that would also include a new structure in the historic district. Director Henley
said that he would be curious how Beaufort uses this guideline and could contact them to see.

Landscaping

Landscape elements, streetscapes, trees, yards, and fences play a crucial role in defining the
charm and character of Beaufort’s historic district. Ms. Meehan read the guidelines beginning
in Chapter 8. Ms. Bray asked about the ROW’s and where the discussion was on addressing
concerns for landscape and trees that are planted in the ROW. Mr. Henley said in the district the
lots are zoned R-10 and they are mostly non-conforming and they are not required to provide
any onsite parking for residential. He said one thing the Board is looking at is whether the
City is going to allow improvements and parking in the ROW. However, he said these spaces
cannot be completely reserved for the owners because it is public property. He said another
discussion is whether to grandfather in the existing encroachments. There was a lot of
discussion on the use of the right-of ways and understanding and how it can or cannot be
used. If there is existing trees planted in the ROW and utilities need repair or for other City needs
the property owner would be responsible for replacing that landscape. Mr. Henley said if the
City had more curbs, it would protect more of the ROW. Mr. Henley said that there will be issues
with the landscaping. It was the consensus of the Board to table the discussion on landscaping
until consulting with some of the Committees such as the Forestry, Beautification, Garden Club
or maybe Ms. Patsy Walker that Mr. Herring recommended.



Fences and Walls

Mr. Henley gave an overview. In Beaufort it states All applications for a COA for the construction
of fences and walls must include the following to be considered: 1) A detailed survey plat or site
plan showing the location of the proposed fence. 2) A scaled elevation drawing of the proposed
fence or a photograph showing another fence which will be used as the exact model for the
proposed fence. Chairman Drew asked what are Southport’s fence regulations. Mr. Henley said
four feet in the front and six feet on the sides and rear.

Outside Utilities

As stated in the guidelines by Mr. Henley :Utility work in the public right of way may require a
COA. All new utility poles and lines, transformers, and signal equipment must be approved by
the HPC and will be evaluated on the basis of location, design, color, scale, and compatibility
with the surrounding streetscape, and the overall visual impact on the district or landmark.

Exterior Lighting

Director Henley said the process has just begun on updating and revising the Lighting Ordinance
in the UDO with the Planning Board. Mr. Henley went over the guidelines. He said that guideline
8.4.5: All lighting should be directed toward the property for which it was intended and should
not spill over onto adjacent properties. will be conflicting with Southport’s current UDO.

Off-Street Parking

Planner Meehan went over the guidelines for off-street parking. It was discussed that on
guideline 8.5.7 that stated that the use of certain paving material were used for parking areas
and driveways would be different materials that were/are used in Southport. Ms. Meehan said
there will be some guidelines that will be revised to meet the standards and guidelines for the
historic character of Southport. There will need to be more discussion on this.

Signage

8.6.2: Place signs so that they do not visually overwhelm the building or streetscape or damage
or obscure character defining architectural details. Ms. Meehan noted that it should be
considered that the Board may want to require smaller signage than what the Beaufort zoning
may allow. She said that public traffic, directional, and information signs are under the purview
of the Commission. These signs should be consolidated and placed on uniform poles to reduce
visual clutter. Standard locations for such signage should also be designed to mitigate impact.
Chairman Drew commented that there pole street signs were used at one time, and there are a
few left. There was discussion on incorporating those back into the Historic District. It was noted
DOT and Emergency Services would need to collaborate with signage.

8.6.9. The use of a sandwich board, back-to-back sign or V-board in the Historic District of
Beaufort conflicts with the Southport UDO guidelines. Mr. Henley asked if the Board would like
to use Beaufort’s guidelines or stay with the City’s UDO guidelines? The consensus of the Board
was to follow in accordance with the Southport UDO.



Chairman Drew question this guideline 8.6.6. Use of internally illuminated or flashing signs
(including illumination of vending machines) is prohibited. He said that there is a vending
machine on Nash Street near the Public Restrooms that is lighted. Mr. Henley said that this is
allowable because it is on a non-conforming lot. However, vending machines are not allowed in
the CBD.

Chairman Drew stated that signage will be a big conversation. He said people may be concerned
on how this will effect their businesses.

New Business: None
Other Business: Mr. Henley said there will be a continuation of the review on the guidelines
and working on the feedback that was given. He said that meeting twice a month will be put on

pause until the new Historic Planner is hired.

A Motion was made by Mr. Pukenas to return Mr. West and Ms. Bray back to their alternate
positions and seconded by Mr. Herring. Unanimous Vote; Motion Carried.

Announcements:

Chairman Drew reminded everyone that the regular Historic Preservation Commission would be
on July 5th at 4:00 p.m.

There was no further business. A Motion was made by Mr. Pukenas to adjourn the meeting and
seconded by Mr. Herring. Unanimous vote; Motion carried.

Adjournment: 3:04 p.m.

Chairman, Charles Drew Deputy Clerk, Tanya Shannon



